
 
 
 

Council Excellence Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 26 August 2010 
Time: 
 

4.30 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 3 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
CALL-IN OF CABINET MINUTE 68 (22 JULY 2010) 
- AREA BASED GRANT 
 
 At its meeting held on 22 July 2010, the Cabinet considered the report 

of the Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Corporate Services in 
relation to Area Based Grant 2010/11 and Priorities for Future Years. 
 
The report set out (1) the current position on Area Based Grant across 
the Council; (2) recommendations where the recently announced 
Government reductions in Area Based Grant for 2010/11 should be 
made and the implications of these; (3) sought Members views on the 
allocation of the remaining Area Based Grant for 2010/11; and (4) 
advised on the approach to be considered for future funding 
allocations. The Cabinet –  
 
Resolved –  
 
(1) That Cabinet agrees the ABG reductions in 2010/11 of 

£3,927,000 as set out below: 
 

Source Amount 

Uncommitted ABG with no or low 
impact to services (not frontline) 

£1,837,000 

Uncommitted ABG with medium 
impact to services (not frontline) 

£1,073,000 

Working Neighbourhood Fund £1,017,000 

Total £3,927,000 

Public Document Pack



 
(2) That a review of all future ABG funding is undertaken as set 

out in paragraph 5.2 of this report. 
 
That decision has been called in by the Leader and Deputy Leader of 
the Labour Group, Councillor S Foulkes and Councillor P Davies on 
the grounds that “The report is misleading and plays down the actual 
impact of the cuts recommended. 
 
Cutting over half a million pounds, for example, from the School 
Development Grant, which is used to raise the standards of teaching 
and learning in schools cannot be said to have no impact on front line 
services. 
 
Children’s Services last year used £900,000 of uncommitted Area 
Based Grant to help reduce an overspend of £1.9m, of which £1.7m 
was due to increased spending on independent residential care for 
children. Cutting uncommitted grant will remove this flexibility and in so 
doing will have a direct impact on key frontline services.  
 
There is a clear credibility gap between the priorities it says it is setting 
out to protect and the reality of what the Cabinet recommendations will 
mean. 
 
A cut of £1.6m in the Working Neighbourhood Fund, for example, 
which is higher even than the cut recommended by the government, is 
in direct conflict with maintaining the Corporate Priorities both of 
mitigating the impact of the recession and reducing worklessness and 
of reducing the numbers not in employment, education or training. 
 
Despite the much trumpeted dedication of this administration to 
consultation of all kinds, with staff, service users and the general 
public, there has been no consultation on these cuts at all, or any 
debate about their true impact. The reverse is true, with every effort 
being made to hide that impact. 
 
It is not made clear that the way in which this report is written, and the 
recommendations are framed, means that the administration has now 
added a further £3.9m of additional cuts to be made to close the 
2011/12 budget gap, which has already reached £24m and is rising 
fast, taking the total so far to nearly £28m, and this is before the full 
impact of the Comprehensive Spending Review is added to it. 
 
The cuts in this year’s grant are fundamentally unnecessary, as recent 
growth figures have demonstrated, and a result of political dogma from 
the national Conservative Liberal Democrat coalition which puts 
ideological commitment to a smaller state above the interests of the 
nation and is prepared, in so doing, to jeopardise the country’s 
economic recovery by cutting too sharply too soon in order to achieve 
its ends over the course of a single parliament”. 
 
 



1. CHAIR'S OPENING REMARKS  
 
2. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF 

INTEREST/PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

3. EXPLANATION OF CALL-IN BY LEAD SIGNATORY  
 
4. EVIDENCE FROM CALL-IN WITNESSES  
 
5. EVIDENCE FROM CABINET MEMBER'S WITNESSES  
 
6. SUMMING UP BY MOVER OF THE CALL-IN  
 
7. SUMMING UP BY CABINET MEMBER  
 
8. COMMITTEE DEBATE  
 
9. COMMITTEE DECISION  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

WIRRAL COUNCIL  
 
CABINET – 22 JULY 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE/DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE 
SERVICES 
 
AREA BASED GRANT 2010/11 AND PRIORITIES FOR FUTURE YEARS  

 
 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report sets out (1) the current position on area based grant across the Council, (2) 
recommends where the recently announced Government reductions in area based grant 
for 2010/11 should be made and the implications of these (3) seeks Members views on 
the allocation of the remaining area based grant for 2010/11 and (4) advises on the 
approach to be considered for future funding allocations. 

 

2.0 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1     The new Government has been reviewing its financial position over the past few months. 
It has already removed the ring fence from certain funding sources (which has given 
local Councils flexibility on how those financial resources are prioritised and allocated 
both for the present and future financial years) and announced a series of in-year budget 
reductions in funding areas including area based grant, as well as reducing certain other 
budgets. The Comprehensive Spending Review is currently progressing at national level 
and Councils will be advised of the outcome in October/November 2010. 

  

2.2 The in-year reductions in ABG funding were reported to Cabinet in June 2010 and are 
summarised below.  In considering these reductions to grant and funding streams, the 
Government has given priority to protecting the funding for schools, Surestart and 16-19 
year olds, and has not reduced funding in the specific grants and/or funding streams for 
adult social care, housing benefit administration, main programme funding for Supporting 
People and for the fire service.  In response to the Government’s announcement, 
Cabinet at its meeting on 24 June 2010 considered a report from the Director of Finance 
on the Reduction of Specific Grants in 2010-11 and resolved amongst other things that 
“as a matter of priority, the Director of Corporate Services brings forward a report to 
Cabinet reviewing all spending which is financed through area based grant (ABG) 
funding and setting out where this funding impacts on staffing.  The review shall assess 
the spending of ABG funding against criteria including its alignment with corporate plan 
priorities, the scale of impact and the record of effectiveness in achieving the desired 
outcomes from such spending.  This review will form the basis on which spending 
decisions of ABG will be based both in the future and in the current financial year.”  
(Minute 41(3) refers).  Information has been collected and assessed by officers in the 
light of the Cabinet instruction and is summarised in section 4 of this report. 

 
2.4 The Council provides many important services to the communities of Wirral and 

addresses issues, for example the economy, which are of critical importance to the future 
of the Borough.  The approach taken in this report recognises these services and areas 
of activity which are identified within the corporate plan as priorities for improvement 
during 2010/11 (copy attached at appendix 1), and seeks to protect them for the benefit 
of the people of Wirral, as far as it is possible to do.  However, where it is sensible and 
will not be detrimental to the service, efficiency measures have been proposed within this 
report including the deletion of vacant posts.   

Agenda Annex

Page 1



  

 
The following service areas will be protected where possible to ensure the Council 
continues to deliver the 2010/11 priorities for improvement: 

  

2010/11 Priority for Improvement Council Services 

Mitigate the impact of the recession and plan 
for recovery particularly focusing in reducing 
worklessness and increasing enterprise  

Services to tackle worklessness and skills 
issues, and to support enterprise and 
business growth. 

Activity within Wirral’s economic recovery plan 
in response to the recession. 

Reduce Wirral’s carbon footprint by working 
with our partners and the community to 
reduce the carbon footprint across the local 
authority area 

Activity to reduce Wirral’s carbon footprint 
including the implementation of the Council’s 
climate change action plan. 

Reduce number of people killed or seriously 
injured in road accidents 

Services and initiatives to improve road safety 
and reduce the number of people killed or 
seriously injured on Wirral’s roads. 

Review and implement an affordable housing 
policy to reflect current market conditions 

Services and programmes to deliver new 
affordable homes in Wirral to ensure that 
Wirral’s housing market thrives.   

Reduce health inequalities within Wirral Services and activities to address the health 
inequalities that exist within Wirral. 

Promote independence and choice Adult social care services including mental 
health and learning disabilities services. 

Tackle alcohol harm Services and activity to tackle alcohol harm 
including the implementation of the alcohol 
harm reduction strategy.  

Reduce numbers not in employment, 
education or training 

Services to support 14 to 19 year olds to 
access education, training and employment. 

Safely reduce the number of looked after 
children 

Children’s social care services. 

Reduce teenage conceptions Services to reduce teenage conception 
including health and relationship advice for 
young people. 

 
3.0 ANALYSIS OF WIRRAL’S AREA BASED GRANT 
 

3.1 The headline figures for 2010/11 are as follows; 
 

Total amount of ABG £41,497,000 
Total amount of ABG committed £34,417,000 
Total amount of ABG uncommitted   £7,080,000 
 

3.2 The uncommitted amount increases to £15,397,000 when monies from previous years 
Working Neighbourhood Fund allocations earmarked but not committed against the next 
generation broadband project and uncommitted monies identified by the Director of 
Children’s Services from non ABG grant sources are included.   

 
3.3 The total ABG Grant Reduction required in 2010/11 is £3,927,000.  Government has 

advised that the fact that certain grants have been chosen for reduction over others does 
not mean that the Government expects there to be a direct correlation between grant 

Page 2



  

reductions and local authority budget changes.  It is therefore at the Council’s discretion 
as to where these reductions are actually made within area based grant. 

 
4.0 PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 A detailed analysis has been undertaken by officers to assess the effectiveness of both 

the spend of ABG to achieve the desired outcomes and the scale of impact to inform the 
current financial year reductions and future spending.  The following criteria has been 
used for reviewing each area based grant funding stream, based on the Cabinet 
resolution:  

 
1. Is the activity a priority for improvement within the Corporate Plan for 2010/11?  

 
2. What is the impact of each activity on frontline services?  The following guidelines 

have been used: 

• Low – No or low impact to service (not frontline)  

• Medium – Impact to service (not frontline) 

• High – Impact to frontline service 
 

3. How effective is the funding on achieving the desired outcomes?  The following 
guidelines have been used: 

• Green – Performance of related projects / performance measures (including 
national indicators) performing as planned and compare in line or above 
national and regional comparator groups  

• Amber – There is minor slippage in related projects / and minor 
underperformance in performance measures.  National indicators generally 
perform in line or above national and regional comparator groups.  

• Red – There is significant slippage in related projects / and significant 
underperformance in performance measures.  National indicators perform 
lower than national and regional comparator groups.  

 
4.3  The result of the assessment produced a series of important findings.  There are a 

number of areas assessed as amber or red in terms of effectiveness which would result 
in high impact to frontline services if reductions were to be made from committed 
funding.  Departments have advised that it would be very difficult to reduce expenditure 
that is already committed in 2010/11 due to the impact to service and staffing 
implications.  Whilst it is not possible to reduce expenditure which is committed in this 
financial year, it is proposed that a detailed review of the funding streams assessed as 
amber or red is undertaken this financial year to inform future spending decisions from 
2011/12.  This includes the following areas: 
 

• Adult Social Care 

• Mental Health Services 

• Learning Disability Services 

• Children’s Social Care 

• Education, training, employment services for 14-19 year olds 

• Activities for young people 

• Young people with substance misuse problems 

• Housing services for vulnerable people 

• Worklessness, skills, enterprise and business growth 
 

4.4 It is recommended that Cabinet make the reductions required for 2010/11 from 
uncommitted funding as outlined in section 4.4 and 4.5 of this report.  The following 

Page 3



  

funding streams have been identified as low impact, meaning there are no implications to 
existing staff contracts and no or low impact to services.  

 

Funding stream Uncommitted 
grant 

Effectiveness Comments / Implications 

Mental Capacity Act & 
Independent Mental 
Capacity Advocate 
Service 

£50,000 Amber The uncommitted funding was identified 
to recruit a Mental Capacity Act 
Coordinator post.  This post will now not 
be recruited and existing arrangements 
will continue. 

LSC Staff Transfer £50,000 Amber No implications for the service.  Savings 
identified follow transfer and integration 
of LSC staff into the department.  

14-19 Flexible 
Funding Pot 

£48,000 Amber No implications for the service.  Savings 
identified follow transfer and integration 
of LSC staff into the department. 

Children’s Trust Fund £17,000 Green Funding is uncommitted following the 
Government’s announcement that the 
Children’s Trust Fund scheme will cease 
in 2010/11.   

Connexions £75,000 Amber No implications for the service. This 
funding was identified for a Service 
Manager post that has now been funded 
by the Youth Offending Service.   

Young People 
Substance Abuse 
Partnership 

£32,000 Amber Uncommitted funding resulting from a 
vacant post.  This post will now not be 
recruited. 

Teenage Pregnancy £35,000 Green Uncommitted funding contributes to a 
vacant healthy schools post. This post 
will now not be recruited, however other 
activity will continue. 

0-19 Parenting and 
Prevention (Children’s 
Fund) 

£30,000 Amber Uncommitted funding contributes to two 
family support workers post.  These 
posts will now not be recruited. 

Education Health 
Partnerships 

£14,000 Green 100% of Wirral Schools have already 
achieved healthy school status in the 
National Healthy School Programme in 
2009/10.   

Extended Rights to 
Free Transport                 

£60,000 
(subject to 

confirmation in 
September) 

 

Green This funding stream provides eligible 
pupils with free school bus passes.  The 
uncommitted spend results from an 
estimated £60,000 saving based on 
eligible pupil figures.  Exact pupil figures 
and grant spend will be know in 
September and an updated position will 
be reported to Cabinet to ensure that 

Page 4



  

Funding stream Uncommitted 
grant 

Effectiveness Comments / Implications 

sufficient resources are available.  Any 
potential saving within this funding 
stream will not impact on the service and 
all eligible pupils will receive a free 
school bus pass.  

Supporting People £441,000 Amber The uncommitted funding of £441,000 is 
as a direct result of re-tendering and re-
negotiating contracts.   

Community Cohesion £135,000 
(including 
£75,000 

underspend 
from 2009/10) 

Green The uncommitted funding was identified 
to recruit an Equality and Cohesion 
Coordinator post and to support 
community based activities.  This post 
will now not be recruited. 

Economic 
Assessment Duty 

£65,000 Not applicable 
as no 

spending has 
been 

contracted 

The uncommitted funding of £65,000 was 
allocated by the Government to assist in 
preparing a full Economic Assessment of 
the area in order to comply with a 
statutory duty introduced in the Local 
Economy, Economic Development and 
Construction Bill.  The Secretary of State 
for Communities and Local Government 
has indicated that he is likely to withdraw 
such a duty and if he does, these funds 
will not be required. 

School Improvement 
Partners 

£16,000 Green Reduction in funding will reduce level of 
support provided to schools.  National 
requirements will still be met.   

Community Call for 
Action 

£2,000 Not applicable 
as no 

spending has 
been 

contracted 

No implications identified for reducing 
funding.   

Working 
Neighbourhood Fund  

£600,000 Amber The uncommitted spend is available as a 
result of underspend in the management 
budget for this funding stream.   

Think Family and 
Youth Opportunity        
(non ABG funding 
stream) 

 

£167,000 Not applicable 
as no 

spending has 
been 

contracted 

Children’s Services has advised that 
there is a £167,000 savings available 
from the Think Family and Youth 
Opportunity funds, following 
Government’s removal of the ringfencing 
of both of these non ABG funding 
streams. 

Total £1,837,000   

 

Page 5



  

4.5 A review of the uncommitted spend of area based grant has identified that the following 
funding streams have been classified as medium impact, meaning they can be reduced 
with no implications to existing staff contracts and no impact to existing frontline services: 

 

Funding stream Uncommitted 
grant 

Effectiveness Comments / Implications 

Primary National 
Strategy Central 
Coordination 

£22,000 Green Reduced funding could impact on 
support services to schools.  National 
strategies due to end in 2011. 

Secondary National 
Strategy Central 
Coordination 

£25,000 Green Reduced funding could impact on 
support services to schools.  National 
strategies due to end in 2011. 

 

Extended Schools 
Start Up Costs 

£375,000 Green Most is a planned reduction in funding as 
Extended Services are now well 
established in many schools across the 
borough. There is therefore reduced 
demand for start up support and funding.  
Whilst this additional funding would 
provide additional support for schools, it 
is anticipated that the existing provision 
will be maintained. 

School Development 
Grant 

£585,000 Green The total reduction of £585,000 is from a 
total budget of £2.716m.  This grant is 
given to support authorities in raising the 
standards of teaching and learning in 
schools through leadership and 
curriculum programmes on the following 
areas of activity; IT, special educational 
needs, behaviour and narrowing the gap.  
80% of this budget remains in place and 
will continue to fund all of these aspects. 

De-trunking £66,000 Green Reduced funding will require a re-
prioritisation of the programme.  It is 
anticipated that the service area will be 
able to accommodate this reduction in 
funding. 

Total £1,073,000   

 
4.6 The reduction in uncommitted funding would result in savings of £2,910,000.  It is then 

proposed that the working neighbourhood fund is reduced by a further £1,017,000 in line 
with the reduction indicated by government.  This funding is currently uncommitted and 
therefore available to support the ABG reduction.  The areas of work that working 
neighbourhood fund support is a vital objective of the Council and there will be a 
potential impact on outcomes.  However, given the challenge to reduce ABG using 
uncommitted funds at this stage, it is recommended that the reduction outlined is applied 
but that the review of ABG for future financial years reflects this area as a priority. 

 

Page 6



  

5.0 FUTURE AREA BASED GRANT FUNDING DECISIONS 
 
5.1 Area based grant is a funding source that makes a financial contribution to various 

council services and activities.  Many of these require a wider review than just ABG and 
therefore in setting future priorities for all ABG it is proposed that the following factors 
also be taken into account: 

 
- the Council reviewing its priorities for 2011/12 
- the budget consultation and budget making process for 2011/12 
- review of the Council’s change programme 
- development of the Wirral: Combating Anti-Social Behaviour Commission 
 

5.2 It is therefore proposed that information on ABG should be incorporated into the 
consultation process and future priority and budget setting of the Council, and future 
funding decisions made within this context. 

 
6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 These are as set out in the report. 
 
7.0 STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 In 2010/11 all the occupied posts within the Council and partner organisations which are 
funded by ABG (215.45 Full Time Equivalents – a mixture of fulltime and part time posts) 
are in the committed category.  There are six vacant posts identified within uncommitted 
ABG and it is recommended that these are deleted and the savings from these posts 
used to meet the ABG reductions required.  It should be noted that in 2011/12, with 
further budget reductions envisaged the impact on posts could be significant.   

 

8.0 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES/EQUALITY IMPACT IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 This report recommends that all committed funds are expended as planned and 
therefore there will be no equal opportunities implications on planned activity for 2010/11. 

 

8.2 The budget reductions that have been proposed are a directive from Government and in 
determining the Council’s response Departments have taken full account of the impact of 
not committing ‘uncommitted funding’. 

 

9.0 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 

10.0 LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 These are as set out in the report. 
 

11.0 PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 

11.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 

12.0 ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 

12.1 These are as set out in the report. 
 

13.0 SOCIAL INCLUSION IMPLICATIONS 

Page 7



  

 

13.1 These are as set out in the report. 
 

14.0 LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
  

14.1 This report will be of interest to all Members of the Council 
 

15.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

15.1 Wirral Council’s Corporate Plan for 2010/11 
 

15.2  Reduction in Grants to Local Government – letter from the Department for Communities 
and Local Government dated 10 June 2010. 

 

15.3 Cabinet 24 June 2010 - Reductions in Specific Grants 2010-11 
 
15.4    Coalition Partnership Document May 2010 
 
16.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
16.1 It is recommended that: 
 

(i) Cabinet agrees the ABG reductions in 2010/11 of £3,927,000 as set out below: 
 

Source Amount 

Uncommitted ABG with no or low impact to services (not frontline) £1,837,000 

Uncommitted ABG with medium impact to services (not frontline) £1,073,000 

Working Neighbourhood Fund £1,017,000 

Total £3,927,000 

 
(ii) A review of all future ABG funding is undertaken as set out in paragraph 5.2 of this 

report. 
 
  

Jim Wilkie 
Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Corporate Services 

  

Page 8



Vision: To build a more prosperous and equal Wirral

Strategic
Objectives

Aims for 2008 – 2013 Priorities for 
Improvement 2010/11

1. To create more
jobs, achieve a
prosperous
economy and
regenerate Wirral

2. To create a
clean, pleasant,
safe and
sustainable
environment

3. To improve health
and well being for
all, ensuring people
who require support
are full participants
in mainstream
society

4. To help children
and young people
achieve their full
potential

5. Create an
excellent Council

Increase investment and encourage new developments
Increase enterprise and maintain sustainability of local businesses
Ensure that workforce skills are matched to new employment
opportunities
Reduce worklessness through targeted activity
Enhance and promote Wirral’s tourism offer as a key driver for
regenerating the borough

Reduce household waste going to landfill by encouraging
waste recycling and minimisation
Reduce Wirral’s carbon footprint
Achieve high standards of street cleanliness across the borough
Reduce number of people killed or seriously injured in road
accidents
Improve quality, choice and access to the housing market
Prevent homelessness
Reduce violent crime
Tackle domestic violence
Reduce levels of anti-social behaviour and promote public
satisfaction with how it is being tackled
Conserve the borough’s natural and built heritage and ensure
the sustainability of our cultural and leisure facilities

Reduce health inequalities in Wirral and narrow the mortality gap
Promote independence and choice 
Reduce hospital admissions
Encourage healthy lifestyles and participation in fulfilling
activities
Improve support for those with mental health problems
Tackle all forms of alcohol and drug induced harm

Close the attainment gap where poverty and disadvantage
affect achievement
Reduce numbers not in employment, education and training
Safely reduce the number of looked after children 
Support children to achieve and maintain a healthy weight
Increase numbers going to university, especially from
disadvantaged communities
Reduce teenage conceptions

Maintain a stable and sustainable budget, providing value for
money
Ensure effective prioritisation of spending decisions brought
about by government spending restraint
Improve the use of the Council’s land and assets
Promote openness and accountability by involving service users
and engaging communities in the design of accessible services
Improve the Council’s communication with residents
Continue to improve partnership working with the public,
private and voluntary sectors
Enable people to deliver excellence in an organisation that is
well led, engages with and empowers staff
Plan for changing workforce requirements to deliver
organisational capacity and change
Improve the delivery of election and electoral registration services
Improve Member engagement / development
Improve the Council’s overview and scrutiny functions

Mitigate the impact of the
recession and plan for recovery
particularly focusing on
reducing worklessness and
increasing enterprise

Reduce Wirral’s carbon
footprint by working with our
partners and the community to
reduce the carbon footprint
across the local authority area 
Reduce number of people
killed or seriously injured in
road accidents
Review and implement an
affordable housing policy to
reflect current market
conditions

Reduce health inequalities in
Wirral
Promote independence and
choice 
Tackle alcohol harm

Reduce numbers not in
employment, education or
training
Safely reduce the number of
looked after children 
Reduce teenage conceptions

Maintain a stable and
sustainable budget, providing
value for money
Ensure effective prioritisation
of spending decisions brought
about by government
spending restraint
Improve the use of the
Council’s land and assets

Wirral’s Corporate Plan 2010/11 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	CALL-IN OF CABINET MINUTE 68 (22 JULY 2010) - AREA BASED GRANT
	Appendix, 22/07/2010 Cabinet


